
TOWN OF HADDAM 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 
COMMUNITY CENTER 

7 CANDLEWOOD HILL ROAD, HIGGANUM 
WEDNESDAY, 8 JULY 2015 

UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
Subject to Approval by the Commission 

 
ATTENDANCE 

X Stephen Bayley 

X Joe Bergin 

X Dan Dachelet 

X Mike Farina 

X Mike Fortuna, Chairman 

A Ed Vynalek 

X Melissa Schlag, First Selectman 

X Liz West Glidden, Town Planner 

X Bunny Hall Batzner, Recording Clerk 

 
1. Call to Order 
 
Mr. Fortuna called the meeting to order at 7:08 p.m. 
 
2. Attendance 
 
Attendance was taken. 
 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 
The agenda was approved as submitted. 
 
4. River COG Presentation – Economic Development Strategy 
 
Erin Bogan and Jeremy DeCarli, Project Staff, River COG, were present. 
 
Ms. Bogan explained that the River COG is making its first attempt at an economic development strategy 
for the 17 towns it represents.  Ms. Bogan reported that Ninigret Partners, out of Rhode Island and 
Boston, will be consultant.  Ms. Bogan and Mr. DeCarli noted that Ninigret had previously worked with 
Fitzgerald and Halliday, Inc. (FHI) on the Route 1 Corridor Study for Old Saybrook, Westbrook, and 
Clinton and will be partnering with FHI again on this project (an $80,000 project). 
 
Mr. DeCarli distributed copies of the July 2015 monthly newsletter – Forward – which will keep commis-
sions up to date on the project.  Ms. Bogan stated that there will be a research phase where they will be 
working with the consultant, a number of workshops, and the consultant will come before the Commission 
to talk one on one.  Ms. Bogan also stated that the consultant will speak to large employers as well as 
lenders to see obtain data.  Ms. Bogan stated that they plan to have a one page bird’s eye view analysis 
for each town that will lead into a regional strategy.  Mrs. Glidden asked if it would be possible to obtain 
the data set for Haddam to place on the town’s website or at least a link to the COG.  Ms. Bogan stated 
that this project has its own website separate from the COG’s website and that there should be no 
problem in sharing the information.  A brief discussion followed. 
 
Mr. Dachelet stated that some towns have a section of their website that’s designated as a tourism and 
business site and believes this is something that is lacking in Haddam.  Ms. Schlag stated that the town’s 
working on rebuilding the website and that each department will be allowed access to their section of the 



Economic Development Commission 
 8 July 2015 
Unapproved Minutes  2  

website.  Ms. Schlag also stated that the town has been accepted into the UConn Dept. of Public Policy 
Internship and Professional Practice (IPP) Program where an intern will do an analysis and inventory of 
all businesses in town – this will be shared project with the Town of Durham and will be for one semester.   
 
Ms. Bogan addressed Mr. Dachelet’s comment about tourism stating that tourism should probably be 
prioritize collectively as a region as they don’t know what the end answer will be.  Mr. DeCarli stated that 
there may be a large company that has a number of suppliers in the region that no one is aware of the 
connection.  Mr. Fortuna stated that one of the challenges when discussing a regional plan is each town 
is competing with each other for businesses. 
 
Ms. Bogan concluded by stating that she and Mr. DeCarli would like to meet with the Commission again 
sometime in the fall.  Ms. Bogan noted that there will be some workshops that will involve the commission 
separate from the public. 
 
Mrs. Glidden offered to forward information pertaining to this matter on to the Commission.  Ms. Bogan 
stated that they are putting together an email list to send information directly.  Mr. DeCarli stated that Ms. 
Bogan put together a great website and encouraged the Commission to look at it. 
 
A brief discussion followed in regard to the time frame for the intern, who would have access to the town’s 
redesigned website, and if information will be reviewed prior to posting on the website (Ms. Schlag will 
review, but not all details have been ironed out).   
 
5. Public Comment 
 
Ed Schwing discussed manufacturing being sent overseas and not necessarily being a good fit in 
Haddam; whereas, tourism is the draw.  Mr. Bayley stated he agreed in regard to the tourism, but he 
would not sell the region short as jobs sent overseas are coming back. 
 
Mr. Dachelet stated that technology and alternative energy is a tipping point for the state.  Ms. Schlag 
stated that she has signed up Haddam to take part in a Request for Proposals (RFP) as part of 
Connecticut becoming one of the first digital state in the nation.  Mr. Fortuna stated that Comcast is 
making huge steps in that regard.  Mr. Dachelet asked why every town isn’t signing up.  Ms. Schlag 
stated the town would become a public utility with cable and phone being paid through property tax bills.  
Discussion followed. 
 
Ms. Schlag reported that she’s on the Municipal Opportunities Regional Entities (MORE) Commission and 
that the town hall is hooking up to the Nutmeg Network.  Discussion followed at length in regard to data 
technology.   
 
6. Old Business 
a. Tylerville Vision Plan – Review Information Received 
 
Mr. Fortuna reported that Mrs. Glidden had sent the link pertaining to this matter and that there are a 
number of good ideas.  Mr. Fortuna asked if there are any follow up steps.  Mrs. Glidden stated that 
UConn has wrapped up; however, she’s joined Connecticut Main Street for the town technical assistance 
program which is an audit to see if there’s community interest.  Mrs. Glidden also stated that she believes 
doing some type of audit at the intersection of Routes 154 and 82 would be the next step.  Mrs. Glidden 
stated that additional planning would need to go on hold while the Plan of Conservation and Development 
(POCD) is being updated. 
 
Mrs. Glidden reported that she and Ms. Schlag met with officials from East Haddam to discuss a 
scheduled repair project for the swing bridge.  Mrs. Glidden stated that during this meeting, there was 
discussion concerning a pedestrian walkway on the bridge as well as some ideas for repurposing the 
Eagle Landing State Park (a discussion with the state would be required). 



Economic Development Commission 
 8 July 2015 
Unapproved Minutes  3  

Mr. Dachelet talked about a food shack that was in the area of the Chester/Hadlyme Ferry landing and 
wondered if there was an opportunity to do something similar at Eagle Landing.  Discussion followed with 
Ms. Schlag noting that she believes the railroad would like to see something there as well. 
 
Ms. Schlag stated that the state is still looking to develop a large boat launch similar to what’s under the 
Baldwin Bridge in Old Saybrook; and, in her opinion, would be a “nightmare” for Bridge Road.  Mr. For-
tuna stated he believes a commercial venture can be placed on the property so long as it’s a state park.  
Mrs. Glidden stated that the traffic counts on Bridge Road are very good and that the town should strive 
for retention.  Mr. Bergin talked about making Haddam a destination spot. 
 
A brief discussion followed in regard to the need to balance Higganum Center and Tylerville so there isn’t 
a feel of one taking away from the other.  Ideas that were discussed:  food truck event; regional market; 
flea market, etc.  Mr. Dachelet talked about the River Valley Provisions bringing a food truck on the 
weekend to partner with Steady Habit Brewery.  Discussion followed. 
 
Mrs. Glidden stated that there’s an application coming before P&Z for an Anytime Fitness center in 
Tylerville.  Mrs. Glidden gave a brief rundown of what’s required for this application in regard to the well 
on the site.  Mrs. Glidden stated that there needs to be a bigger conversation in regard to the contamin-
ated water and how it will be addressed. 
 
Mr. Bayley noted that there is some controversy pertaining to the Shailer-Banning House being 
demolished for the construction of the Anytime Fitness center.  Ms. Schlag stated that the historical 
society circulated a petition to request a town meeting - Wednesday, 15 July 2015, 7:00 p.m., Town Hall – 
for an ordinance to delay demolition of historic buildings.  Discussion followed in regard to how the town 
can assist in preventing the demolition of historic structures.  Ms. Schlag stated that she, Mrs. Glidden, 
Lisa Malloy, director of the Haddam Historical Society, and an architect are meeting with the potential 
owner of the property.  Mrs. Glidden explained what has taken place before P&Z to date pertaining to this 
matter.  Discussion followed at length. 
 
Mrs. Glidden stated that a conversation that needs to happen is how Haddam encourages economic 
development while also maintaining a sense of character.  Mrs. Glidden also stated that there have been 
indicators that what people want and tend to go to are towns with historic structures. 
 
Discussion followed in regard to signage, the water situation, investigating the possibility of a community 
well, and funding.  Mrs. Glidden briefly explained how P&Z is handling their signage regulations.  Discus-
sion followed in regard to how to have neat, organized signage for community events. 
 
Ayesha Grand Opening – Friday, 10 July 2015, 1:00 p.m. ribbon cutting.  A brief discussion followed in 
regard to what further development will take place on the property.  Mrs. Glidden gave a brief rundown. 
 
Subway, Higganum Center – Mr. Dachelet asked when the new Subway will be coming to town.  Mrs. 
Glidden stated there is a structural problem in the way the building was framed and work needs to be 
done. 
 
b. Beautification Project – Follow Up 
 
Mr. Fortuna reported that he has a planting plan from the state.  Mrs. Glidden will ask the state for a CAD 
program to assist Mr. Fortuna with blending the state’s plan with the streetscape plan.  Mr. Fortuna stated 
that the plan shows the following plantings:  dogwood, common winterberry, and autumn brilliance 
serviceberry.  A brief discussion followed in regard to the bridge replacement project getting underway   
 
c. Budget – Fiscal Year 2015-2016 - Approved 
 
Mr. Fortuna reported that the budget has been approved.  Mrs. Glidden stated the Tylerville Study was 
paid for out of 2014-2015 EDC funds.  A brief discussion followed in regard to additional work that’s 
needed at the Community Center and renting the building for events.  Ms. Schlag reported that the 



Economic Development Commission 
 8 July 2015 
Unapproved Minutes  4  

building cannot be rented to outside groups as the water is not potable and the septic system is 
inadequate. 
 
d. Reappointment – Dan Dachelet – Follow Up 
 
Mr. Fortuna reported that Mr. Dachelet has been reappointed to another three year term (expire 2018). 
 
6. New Business 
a. Discuss Connecticut Economic Resource Center (CERC) Workshop 
 
Mr. Fortuna stated that the workshop was good and that there was a lot of data.  Ms. Schlag will email the 
information to the Commissioners.  Discussion followed in regard to everyone’s idea of what the town 
should look like differs; and the fear of big box stores coming to town. 
 
Mr. Dachelet asked if there is any potential for an economic development coordinator being funded.  Ms. 
Schlag stated it can be discussed.  Discussion followed in regard to what Tom Gidius, former coordinator, 
did.  Ms. Schlag stated that she would like to see what the coordinator in East Haddam does and review 
the information. 
 
Discussion turned to what businesses need – allowing businesses that want to grow to grow – and the 
need for water and sewer.  Further discussion followed at length in regard to the Power Point presenta-
tion that Mr. Fortuna has given several times, gathering cost numbers, low interest loans, and reactivating 
the discussion on sewer. 
 
8. Approval of Minutes 
 
11 February 2015 minutes – tabled. 
 
Corrections to the 11 March 2015 minutes:  page 2, fourth paragraph, last line – add “not” between “is” 
and “conducive” and page 3, b. Update on Budget, second paragraph, first sentence – change “bowers” 
to “bows” 
 
MOTION:  Stephen Bayley moved to approve the 11 March 2015 minutes as amended.  Joe Bergin 
second.  Motion carried with Mr. Dachelet abstaining. 
 
Correction to the 13 May 2015 minutes:  page 2, Jail Property, second line – change “award” to 
“awarded”. 
 
MOTION:  Mike Fortuna moved to approve the 13 May 2015 minutes as amended.  Stephen Bayley 
second.  Motion carried with Mr. Bergin and Mr. Farina abstaining. 
 
8a. Homegrown Haddam 
 
Ms. Schlag reported that the purpose of this new group is to focus on all of Haddam not just a specific 
section of town.  A brief discussion followed.  
 
9. Adjournment 
 
MOTION: Dan Dachelet moved to adjourn.  Stephen Bayley second. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:00 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

Bunny Hall Batzner 

Bunny Hall Batzner, Recording Clerk 
The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, 12 August 2015. 


